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Bryher 
BRYHER SV81SE Brewhouse approx. 2m SW of 
Veronica 1358-0/3/4 Farmhouse GV II Brewhouse. 
C19. Roughly coursed granite rubble with gabled 
pantile roof and granite end stack. One storey with 
loft. Granite lintels over plank door to right and 
small window to left; small loft window under eaves. 
Interior: granite lintel over fireplace and 4 nailed A-
frame trusses. Many C18 and C19 observers, such as 
Borlase, noted that almost every house on the 
islands was into milling corn by hand and brewing. 
(Borlase, W: Observations on the ..... the Islands of 
Scilly: Oxford: 1754-: 69). 

 

BRYHER SV81SE Church of All Saints 1358-0/3/1 
12/02/75 II Church. 1742 with additions and 
alterations of 1882 and 1897 and new roof of 1930. 
Roughly coursed granite rubble with slate roofs. 
Rectangular single-cell plan with narrowed 
sanctuary end and south-west tower. East gable has 
cross to apex and pair of chamfered lancets. 2-bay 
side walls have keyed semi-circular arched windows; 
west gable has line of earlier roof pitch. Lean-to 
porch to west end has keyed semi-circular arch over 
plank double doors. 2-stage tower has square-
headed louvred belfry windows breaking raised 
course below eaves and pyramidal roof with apex 
cross. King-post roof. Altar rail with decorative 
wrought-iron brackets, Gothic-style choir stalls, 
chancel rail, benches and polygonal pulpit all with 
blind and open trefoil and quatrefoil panels. Plain 
granite font dated 1861. Brass oil lamps. Late C19 
stained glass windows. (Borlase, William: 
Observations on the ..... Islands of Scilly: Oxford: 
1754-: 56; Buildings of England: Pevsner, N and 
Ratcliffe, E: Cornwall: London: 1951-1970: 208). 

 

BRYHER SV81SE The Forge 1358-0/3/2 II House, now 
outbuilding. C18. Roughly coursed granite rubble 
with gabled pantile roof and granite end stacks. 
Originally of 2-unit plan. One storey; 2-window 
range. Granite lintels over central doorway and 
flanking windows; rear has granite lintel over 
window to right of centre. Interior: open fireplace 
with timber lintel. The house seems to have been 
divided into 2 rooms, and the off-centre position of 
the rear window indicates that it did not have the 
central-staircase plan which was the dominant type 
in the C19. A rare surviving example of a single-
storey dwelling, a type once prevalent on the islands 
before the C19 brought higher standards of living. 

 

BRYHER SV81SE Veronica Farmhouse 1358-0/3/3 
GV II Farmhouse, now house. Earlier C19 with later 
C19 extension. Roughly coursed granite rubble, of 
larger blocks to extension; gabled slate roof to main 
range and scantle slate roof to extension; rendered 
ridge and end stacks. 2-unit central-staircase plan 
with separate entrance to one-unit extension with 
left-hand staircase to right. 2 storeys; 4-window 
range. Granite lintels over two C20 doors, late C19 
horned 2/2-pane sashes, 2-light casement to first 
floor on right and small window over central door to 
main range. Interior remodelled in C20. An example 
of a farmhouse adapted for an extended family unit; 
it is also associated with its brew-house (q.v.). 
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Round Island 
ROUND ISLAND TRESCO SV91Nli Round Island 
Lighthouse and attached 1358-0/2/117 house II 
Lighthouse. 1887, by William Tregarthen Douglass. 
Granite ashlar; cast-iron cupola. Circular plan to 
tapering 3-stage tower. Square-headed cross 
windows. Cast-iron parapet rail and lattice light with 
curved conical roof. Attached single-storey house of 
5-window range has 4 sash windows with glazing 
bars and central porch with doors in returns and 
fixed 8-pane casement to front; projecting cornice 
to flat roof. Lights modernized 1967. (P Laws: The 
Buildings of Scilly: Redruth: 1980-: 20). 

 

 

St Agnes 
ST. AGNES SV80NE HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/6/14 Atlantic 

Cottage GV II Farmhouse. C18, eaves raised and other 
alterations of late C19. Roughly coursed granite 
rubble with slurried Delabole slate roof and granite 
end stacks. 2-unit central-staircase plan. 2 storeys; 
3-window range. Granite lintels over late C19 
panelled door to right and late C19 half-glazed door 
to left, and over late C19 horned 2/2-pane sashes. 
Late C19 glazed shed to left, built for the flower 
industry. Interior: complete Scillonian interior 
includes beaded plank partitions, mid C19 fireplace 
with roundels to right, and kitchen fireplace to left 
with bracketed mantle-shelf flanked by C19 
cupboards- one retaining C18 H-hinges. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE Avenue House 1358-0/6/6 GV II 
House. Early/mid C19. Roughly. Coursed granite 
rubble; slurried scantle slate roof; granite end stacks 
with drip courses. 2-unit central-staircase plan. 2 
storeys; 2-window range. Granite lintels over late 
C19 plank door and horned 2/2-pane sashes. Later 
outshut to rear left with brick stack. Interior: C19 
joists. 
 

 

 

ST AGNES SV 80 NE ST AGNES 1358/6/10011 Barn to 
the west of Tamarisk Farmhouse GV II Combination 
barn. Mid C19 (shown on 1880 OS map). Uncoursed 
stone rubble with dressed quoins and lintels; gabled 
pantile roof Rectangular plan. 2 storeys. East front 
facing house and former yard between has stone 
lintels over outer C20 doors. Steps rise to central 
doorway flanked by two C20 windows, all set under 
eaves. Stone lintels over loft openings to each gable 
end and first-floor door (former winnowing door) to 
rear. Later C 1 9 outshut to north end. C19 collar 
trusses to interior. This barn, which groups with 
Tamarisk Farmhouse (qv), is a good example of a 
Scillonian farm building in materials commonly used 
in the C19 and built to a plan increasingly common 
on Cornish farms in the C19. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NW Bishop Rock Lighthouse 1358-
0/5/7 II Tower lighthouse. c1852-1858 by James 
Walker; encased and heightened in 1883 by James 
Douglass, superintending engineer. Granite ashlar; 
metal cupola. Circular plan to tapering 6-stage 
tower. Boarded door and small windows. Bracketed 
gallery beneath lattice light with conical roof. Cast-
iron tower of 1849 destroyed in 1850. Not seen. The 
tallest and best-known tower lighthouse in the 
British Isles. (Hague D and Christie R: Lighthouses: 
Their Architecture, History and Archaeology: 
Llandysul: 1975-: 130-1). 
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ST. AGNES SV80NE Building to SE of The Lighthouse 
1358-0/6/12 GV II Ancillary building to The 
Lighthouse (q.v.). c1840. Roughly coursed granite 
rubble with hipped slate roof and granite end stacks 
with octagonal flues. Rectangular single-depth plan. 
One storey. External stairs to platform attached to 
south. Interior not inspected. Included for group 
value. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE Church of St. Agnes 1358-0/6/8 
06/04/59 II Church. Early C19. Roughly coursed 
granite rubble with slate roof. Single-cell plan with 
west tower. Semi-circular arched east window. 
Square-headed C20 windows to 3-bay side walls; 
lean-to porch to south. Plain 3-stage tower with 
brick voussoirs to round belfry windows. Interior: 
complete set of C19 fittings include pitched deal A-
frame roof, painted pine benches with poppy-head 
bench ends, brass oil lamps, plain granite font with 
chamfered sides, panelled gallery front and pulpit 
with tester. (Buildings of England: Pevsner, N and 
Ratcliffe, E: Cornwall: London: 1951-1970: 209). 

 

ST. AGNES SV81SE Farmbuilding approx. 20m NNE 
of 1358-0/3/5 Annet Farmhouse GV II Farmbuilding, 
formerly used as threshing barn, cowhouse and 
stables. Early C19. Roughly coursed granite rubble; 
corrugated asbestos roof. 2 storeys; 2-window first-
floor range. Shutters to first-floor loft doors above 
granite lintels over outer doorways and 2 central 
windows. Hole for drive shaft which powered 
threshing machine. Steps to first-floor door in left 
gable door. A good example of an advanced type of 
farmbuilding situated on an island once noted for its 
fertile corn-bearing soil. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE House attached to NE of The 
1358-0/6/11 Lighthouse. GV II Quarters for 
lighthouse and coastguard staff, now house. c1840. 
Colourwashed render over granite rubble; slate roof 
with kneelers to stone coping; lateral and end stacks 
with octagonal shafts. H-plan of central range with 2 
return cross wings. Picturesque Tudor style. Gables 
have one ground-floor 3-light and one first-floor 2-
light mullioned casement windows with glazing bars 
in chamfered surrounds. Central range has 2 similar 
first-floor windows above verandah with half-glazed 
double doors flanked by one-light windows in 
chamfered surrounds. Interior not inspected. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE K6 telephone kiosk 1358-0/6/9 
GV II Telephone kiosk, Type K6. Designed 1935 by 
Sir Giles Gilbert Scott. Made by various contractors. 
Cast iron. Square kiosk with domed roof. 
Unperforated crowns to top panels and margin 
glazing to windows and door. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE The Lighthouse 1358-0/6/10 06/04/59 GV 

II* Lighthouse. 1680 for Trinity House, with cupola of 1806. 

Colourwashed render on granite rubble, with cast-iron and glass 
cupola. Circular on plan. 3 storeys with fourth-storey cupola. 2 
plat band divisions. Randomly-placed casement and 4-pane 
openings. Projecting eaves with cast-iron railing, curved 
stanchions tied to glass cupola with square panes with curved 
conical roof. Addition of c1840 consists of single-storey lean-to 
porch and corridor attached with further right-angled corridor 
attached leading to house (q.v.). Interior noted as having lantern 
reached by wooden newel stair from first floor and carried by 
shallow stone vault (replacing original timber ceiling); stone 
mural stair to first floor which has 4 gun ports. Plaque records 
original build of c1680 by Captain Hugh Hill and Captain Simon 
Bayly, builders of the 1676 Lowestoft lighthouse. Superseded in 
1910 by the Peninnis Lighthouse, St. Mary's (q.v.). The original 
iron cresset is now in Tresco Gardens (q.v.). (Hague D and 
Christie R: Lighthouses: Their Architecture, History and 
Archaeology: Llandysul: 1975-: 79-81, 241-4). 
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ST. AGNES SV80NE HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/6/15 
Myrtle Cottage GV II Farmhouse, now house. Late 
C18/early C19. Colourwashed roughly coursed 
granite rubble with slate roof and granite end stacks 
with drip courses. 3-unit plan with entry to right of 
centre. 2 storeys; 3-window range. Granite lintels 
over late C19 panelled door and horned 2/2-pane 
sashes. Outshut to left and rear left outshut. Interior 
not inspected but noted as having C19 joists. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/6/16 
Outbuilding at SV 8831 0819 GV II House, now 
outbuilding. C18. Roughly coursed granite rubble 
with corrugated iron roof; truncated end stack. 2-
unit plan. 2 storeys; irregular 2-window range. 
Granite lintels over central door and flanking 
windows, with first-floor windows under eaves. Rear 
elevation, facing road, has granite lintels over 2 
small window openings and doorway to right. 
Interior: C19 pegged A-frame trusses with nailed 
apexes; fireplace with wood bressummer. An 
interesting survival of a small Scillonian dwelling. 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/6/17 
Rose Cottage GV II House. C18 (rear wing) with early 
C19 extension. Roughly coursed granite rubble with 
slurried scantle slate roof and brick end stacks. L-
plan with rear right wing. 2 storeys; 3-window 
range. Granite lintels over late C19 horned 2/2-pane 
sashes. Right gable end has granite lintel over late 
C19 half-glazed plank door. Rear right wing of one 
storey with hipped roof and end stack with drip 
course; C20 flat-roofed extension at angle with main 
range. Interior: C19 fireplace with bracketed 
overmantle in rear wing. C19 wing has moulded 
cornicing. Included for group value. 
 

 

ST. AGNES SV80NE HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/6/18 
Rosenhill GV II House. Early C19. Roughly coursed 
granite rubble; corrugated asbestos roof; granite 
end stacks. 2-unit central staircase plan with rear 
right outshut. 2 storeys; 2-window range. Granite 
lintels over late C19 horned 2/2-pane sashes 
flanking lean-to porch and half-glazed door; smaller 
similar sashes under eaves. Interior: C19 fireplace 
with bracketed overmantle to left. 

 

ST AGNES SY 80 NE ST AGNES 135816/10010 Tamarisk 
Farmhouse GV II Farmhouse. C18, extended mid C19. 
Stone rubble, roughly brought to course, colour washed 
to east side; gabled dry slate roof with brick end stacks, 
those to C 1 8 section with C 1 8 stone bases. PLAN: C18 
house of 2-room central-entry plan, absorbed into large 
mid C19 parallel range to W making double-depth plan; 
west dairy outshut. EXTERIOR: 2 storeys. Lower C18 
east front of 2-window range with stone lintels over late 
C19 1/1 -pane sashes to central plank door; rendered 
porch with C20 half-glazed door. West front has stone 
lintels over homed 2/2-pane sashes and C. 20 door to 
south end of outshut. INTERIOR: cast range retains 
pegged probably CI5 (C18?) trusses with reused 
wreckwood; left-hand room has granite fireplace and 
boarded ceiling with ships timbers to joists, and right-
hand room has boarded ceiling with sawn joists 
(fireplace hidden behind studwork). C18 and C19 joinery 
including panelled doors. Home of the Hicks family since 
they settled on the islands at the beginning of the Cl8. 
The older part, which was used as a post office and 
general stores until the First World War, comprises an 
unusual example of domestic vernacular predating the 
improvements on the islands of the mid Cl9 and later. 
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St Martins 
ST. MARTIN'S SV9lNW Ashvale Farmhouse 1358-
0/2/19 II Farmhouse. Mid C19, incorporating older 
former dwelling. Uncoursed and roughly coursed 
granite rubble with C20 slate and pantile roofs; brick 
end stacks to main mid C19 range and truncated end 
stack to older range. 3-unit plan to main range and 
2-unit plan to older range at right angles to west. 2 
storeys. Main 3-window range has granite lintels 
over panelled door and horned 2/2-pane sashes. 
Lower former dwelling has granite lintels over C20 
plank door and small window; concrete lintel over 
C20 window to right and C20 window under eaves. 
Interior: former dwelling has pegged A-frame 
trusses. 

 

{¢ a!w¢LbΩ{ SV 91 NW ST MARTIN'S Barn at Little 
Arthur Farm 1358/2/10004 II Barn. Mid C19. 
Coursed granite blocks with ram mortar and worked 
quoins; gabled pantile roof, the spikes visible in east 
elevation suggesting the use of thatch originally. 
Rectangular two-storey plan. West elevation has 
corrugated iron loft door above central door 
opening. Timber shutter and platform to left-hand 
loft door, 2-pane fixed-light window with pigeon 
hole to left. Three ventilation holes to south gable. 
Concrete block lean-to with corrugated iron roof 
added to north gable, on site of earlier livestock 
enclosure bounded by granite rubble wall. To west is 
a raised cobbled path, with granite rubble wall on 
western edge fronting midden. Complete example 
of a mid C19 field barn, typical of those built in west 
Cornwall in this period and dramatically sited on 
land sloping south towards the sea. The best 
example of its type on the islands, exemplifying as a 
group the significant agricultural improvements of 
the period. 

No photo 

ST. MARTIN'S SV91NW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/22 
Bleak House GV II House. Early/mid C19. Roughly 
coursed granite rubble, partly rendered; gabled 
artificial slate roof; stone ridge and end stacks with 
drip courses. 3-unit plan with rear outshut to left. 2 
storeys; 4-window range. Granite lintels over C20 
half-glazed door and late C19 horned 2/2 and 3/3-
pane sashes. Interior not inspected. 
 

No IOE photo 

ST. MARTIN'S SV91NW Church of St. Martin's 1358-
0/2/20 06/04/59 II Church. 1866 for Augustus Smith. 
Roughly coursed granite rubble; gabled slate roof. 
Rectangular single-cell plan with west porch. East 
gable has cross to coping and segmental-arched 
window. 3-bay side walls with C20 windows under 
eaves. West gable surmounted by bellcote with 
monogram A.S. and date 1866; granite lintels over 2 
windows above gabled porch flanked by mid C20 
extensions. Socketed base of small medieval cross in 
east wall. Interior: decorative encaustic tile 
sanctuary floor; C19 pine benches, Gothic-style 
pulpit and octagonal font. West gallery with reset 
turned balusters. East window depicting St. Martin 
and the Beggar by Clayton and Bell. (P Laws: The 
Buildings of Scilly: Redruth: 1980-: 20). 

 

  

 

 



7 

 

 
ST. MARTIN'S SV9lNW The Day Mark 1358-0/2/21 
06/04/59 II* Day mark. Erected 1683 by Thomas 
Ekins, first steward of the Godolphin Family to live 
on the islands. Rendered granite. Circular tower. 
4.8m in diameter and 6.4m high, set back to conical 
termination making it 11m high. Blocked arched 
entrance door with incorrect date of 1637. It was 
painted white until 1822 but by 1833 had been 
painted red, and is now painted in bands of red and 
white. Ekins encouraged the resettlement of St. 
Martins from the 1680s. The earliest surviving dated 
example of a beacon in the British Isles. (Hague D 
and Christie R: Lighthouses: Their Architecture, 
History and Archaeology: Llandysul: 1975-: 208; 
Borlase, W: Observations on ... the Islands of Scilly: 
Oxford: 1754-: 54). 

 

ST. MARTIN'S SV9lNW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/24 
K6 Telephone Kiosk GV II Type K6 telephone kiosk. 
Designed 1935 by Sir Giles Gilbert Scott. Made by 
various contractors. Cast iron. Square kiosk with 
domed roof. Unperforated crowns to top panels and 
margin glazing to windows and door. 
 

 

ST. MARTIN'S SV9lNW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/25 
Methodist Church GV II Methodist church. c.1845. 
Stucco blocked out as ashlar over granite rubble; 
hipped scantle slate roof. One-cell plan with single 
room to left. One storey. Chapel of 2-window range 
with flat rendered arches over 1980s double door to 
left and horned 2/2-pane sashes; 1980s windows to 
rear. Lower single-storey range to left has flat 
rendered arches over plank door with overlight and 
similar sashes to left and left return. Interior: stick-
baluster stair to gallery with panelled front 
supported on cast-iron columns with moulded 
capitals; C19 pulpit and benches with shaped ends. 
(Buildings of England: Pevsner, N and Ratcliffe, E: 
Cornwall: London: 1951-1970: 209). 

 

ST. MARTIN'S SV91NW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/23 
Evergreen, Melinda and Corner Cottage GV II 
Terrace of 3 cottages. Late C18-mid C19. Roughly 
coursed granite rubble; gabled C20 slate roofs and 
Delabole slate roof to Corner Cottage; granite stacks 
with drip courses to Corner Cottage and Melinda 
and brick stacks to Evergreen. Corner Cottage of 3-
unit plan; Melinda and Evergreen of 2-unit central-
staircase plan; later C19 and C20 rear outshuts flank 
earlier (probably original) outshut to centre 
(Melinda). 2 storeys. Corner Cottage of 3-window 
range with granite lintels over late C19 half-glazed 
door and horned 2/2-pane sashes; C20 greenhouse 
to front. Melinda and Evergreen each of 2-window 
range with granite lintels over similar sashes, gabled 
porch with late C20 half-glazed door to Melinda and 
granite lintel over 1980s half-glazed door to 
Evergreen. Interior: C19 joists. 

 

 
Trevean 
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ST. MARTIN'S SV91NW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/26 
North Farmhouse GV II Farmhouse. C17/18, 
extended and remodelled in C19. Roughly coursed 
granite rubble; slate roof, hipped to left; rendered 
ridge and end stacks. Original 2-unit dwelling with 
end stacks extended to sides and rear in C19, firstly 
to left, then parlour wing to rear left, kitchen to rear 
right and back kitchen, packing shed and glasshouse 
to right. 2 storeys; 3-window range. Granite lintels 
over horned 2/2-pane sashes including 2 blocked 
doorways to original structure; gabled porch to left. 
Granite lintels over horned 2/2-pane sashes. Similar 
sashes to 3-window range to left. Interior: C19 
features include beaded joists, panelling and cast-
iron fireplaces. Dairy door with ventilation holes to 
left. Rear left room has moulded fireplace with 
pulvinated frieze and decorative surround. Front 
room has mid C19 iron Cornish range with 
decorative surround and bracketed wood 
overmantle, C19 cupboard in recess and another 
fireplace in dark hardwood surround reputedly from 
captain's cabin of wrecked ship. A good example of a 
Scillonian house with an evolved house plan, 
forming part of an interesting farmstead. (Ratcliffe J 
and Parkes C: Fieldwork in Scilly: September 1989: 
Truro: 1990-: 16-21). 

 

ST. MARTIN'S SV91NW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/27 
Outbuilding approx. 25m WSW of North 
Farmhouse GV II Outbuilding, probably former calf-
house. C19. Roughly coursed granite rubble with 
gabled pantile roof. One storey. Timber lintel over 
one doorway. Two loft windows to rear. One of a 
group of farm buildings which exemplify the types 
found on C19 Scillonian farms. 
 
 

 

ST. MARTIN'S SV9lNW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/29 
Outbuilding approx. 2m SW of North Farmhouse 
GV II Outbuilding, probably a former dairy and brew-
house. C19. Roughly coursed granite rubble with 
gabled pantile roof. Timber lintel over gable-end 
doorway and windows to side walls. One of a group 
of farm buildings which exemplify the range of types 
found on C19 Scillonian farms. 
 

 

ST. MARTIN'S SV91NW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/30 
Pigsty approx. 25m NW of North Farmhouse GV II 
Pigsty. C19. Roughly coursed granite rubble with 
gabled pantile roof. Wall plate over 3 doorways. One 
of a group of farm buildings which exemplify the 
types found on C19 Scillonian farms. 
 

 

ST. MARTIN'S SV9lNW HIGHER TOWN 1358-0/2/32 
Rock House and Rock Cottage GV II House, now 2 
dwellings. 1822 inscription to front door lintel; 
remodelled and extended in later C19. Roughly 
coursed granite rubble; gabled slate roof; brick ridge 
and end stacks. 3-unit single-depth plan extended to 
double-depth plan in later C19. 2 storeys; 4-window 
range. Granite lintels over late C19 plank door to left 
of centre and late C20 half-glazed door to right of 
centre and horned 2/2-pane sashes. Blocked 
doorway to right gable end and similar sashes to 
rear. Interior remodelled in mid C20. Included as a 
dated example of a Scillonian house and for group 
value with the Methodist Chapel (q.v.). 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 


